### City of St. Ignace Council Proceedings (Official)

A Regular Meeting of the St. Ignace City Council was held on Monday, March 4, 2019, in the Council Chambers at City Hall.

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor Litzner, with the Pledge of Allegiance. Councilmember Clapperton gave the invocation.

**Present:** Councilmembers Clapperton, Fullerton, Mayor Litzner, Councilmembers Pelter, St. Louis and Tremble.

**Absent**: It was moved by Mayor Litzner, seconded by Councilmember Pelter, to excuse Mayor Pro-Tem Paquin from the meeting, as he was out of town. Motion carried unanimously.

**Staff Present**: Mike Stelmaszek, City Manager; Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer; Anthony Brown, Chief of Police.

# Consideration of minutes from February 18, 2019 Council meeting:

It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Councilmember Clapperton, to approve the minutes of February 18, 2019. Motion carried unanimously.

# Limited Public Comment: None.

# Additions to the Agenda:

City Manager Stelmaszek - Marina Director resignation and the USDA Loan Resolution.

# 1. INTRODUCE NEW POLICE CHIEF ANTHONY BROWN:

Mayor Litzner welcomed Anthony Brown as the new St. Ignace Chief of Police.

# 2. APPROVAL TO BID LAKESIDE CEMETERY LAWN CARE 2019:

City Manager Stelmaszek informed Council that bids will be accepted for the 2019 summer season for Lakeside Cemetery lawn maintenance using the same advertisement as the previous year. The ad will be submitted for the next available issue in the St. Ignace News.

It was moved by Councilmember Clapperton, seconded by Councilmember Tremble, to approve advertising to accept bids for the Lakeside Cemetery lawn maintenance. Motion carried unanimously.

#### Additions to the Agenda:

# City Manager Stelmaszek - Marina Director Resignation:

City Manager Stelmaszek announced Marina Director Josh Soblaskey has submitted his resignation via email March 4<sup>th</sup>. City Manager Stelmaszek requested to begin the process to fill the Marina Director position immediately.

It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Councilmember Fullerton, to accept the letter of resignation from Josh Soblaskey and approve the process to fill the vacancy of Marina Director. Motion carried unanimously.

# City Manager Stelmaszek - USDA Loan Resolution:

# RESOLUTION

**RUS BULLETIN 1780-27** 

Position 5

APPROVED OMB. No. 0572-0121

#### LOAN RESOLUTION

(Public Bodies)

A RESOLUTION OF THE City Council

OF THE St Ignace City Of

AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE INCURRENCE OF INDEBTEDNESS FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING A PORTION OF THE COST OF ACQUIRING, CONSTRUCTING, ENLARGING, IMPROVING, AND/OR EXTENDING ITS

(Public Body)

FACILITY TO SERVE AN AREA LAWFULLY WITHIN ITS JURISDICTION TO SERVE.

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the St Ignace City Of

(herein after called Association) to raise a portion of the cost of such undertaking by issuance of its bonds in the principal amount of

# One Million Four Hundred Eleven Thousand & 00/100

# pursuant to the provisions of C. I. Bonds P.A. No. 34 of PA of 2001, as amended

WHEREAS, the Association intends to obtain assistance from the United States Department of Agriculture, (herein called the Government) acting under the provisions of the Consolidated Farm and Rural Development Act (7 U.S.C. 1921 et seq.) in the planning. financing, and supervision of such undertaking and the purchasing of bonds lawfully issued, in the event that no other acceptable purchaser for such bonds is found by the Association:

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises the Association hereby resolves:

- 1. To have prepared on its behalf and to adopt an ordinance or resolution for the issuance of its bonds containing such items and in such forms as are required by State statutes and as are agreeable and acceptable to the Government.
- 2. To refinance the unpaid balance, in whole or in part, of its bonds upon the request of the Government if at any time it shall appear to the Government that the Association is able to refinance its bonds by obtaining a loan for such purposes from responsible cooperative or private sources at reasonable rates and terms for loans for similar purposes and periods of time as required by section 333(c) of said Consolidated Farm and Rural Development Act (7 U.S.C. 1983(c)).
- To provide for, execute, and comply with Form RD 400-4, "Assurance Agreement," and Form RD 400-1, "Equal Opportunity Agreement," including an "Equal Opportunity Clause," which clause is to be incorporated in, or attached as a rider to, each construction contract and subcontract involving in excess of \$10,000.
- 4. To indemnify the Government for any payments made or losses suffered by the Government on behalf of the Association. Such indemnification shall be payable from the same source of funds pledged to pay the bonds or any other legal ly permissible source.
- 5. That upon default in the payments of any principal and accrued interest on the bonds or in the performance of any covenant or agreement contained herein or in the instruments incident to making or insuring the loan, the Government at its option may (a) declare the entire principal amount then outstanding and accrued interest immediately due and payable, (b) for the account of the Association (payable from the source of funds pledged to pay the bonds or any other legally permissible source), incur and pay reasonable expenses for repair, maintenance, and operation of the facility and such other reasonable expenses as may be necessary to cure the cause of default, and/or (c) take possession of the facility, repair, maintain, and operate or rent it. Default under the provisions of this resolution or any instrument incident to the making or insuring of the loan may be construed by the Government to constitute default under any other instrument held by the Government and executed or assumed by the Association, and default under any such instrument may be construed by the Government to constitute default hereunder.
- 6. Not to sell, transfer, lease, or otherwise encumber the facility or any portion thereof, or interest therein, or permit others to do so, without the prior written consent of the Government.
- 7. Not to defease the bonds, or to borrow money, enter into any contractor agreement, or otherwise incur any liabilities for any purpose in connection with the facility (exclusive of normal maintenance) without the prior written consent of the Government if such undertaking would involve the source of funds pledged to pay the bonds.
- 8. To place the proceeds of the bonds on deposit in an account and in a manner approved by the Government. Funds may be deposited in institutions insured by the State or Federal Government or invested in readily marketable securities backed by the full faith and credit of the United States. Any income from these accounts will be considered as revenues of the system.
- To comply with all applicable State and Federal laws and regulations and to continually operate and maintain the facility in good condition.
- 10. To provide for the receipt of adequate revenues to meet the requirements of debt service, operation and maintenance, and the establishment of adequate reserves. Revenue accumulated over and above that needed to pay operating and maintenance, debt service and reserves may only be retained or used to make prepayments on the loan. Revenue cannot be used to pay any expenses which are not directly incurred for the facility financed by USDA. No free service or use of the facility will be permitted.

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, an agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a collection of information unless it displays a valid OMB control number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is 0572-0121. The time required to complete this information collection is estimated to average 1 hour per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.

: and

- 11. To acquire and maintain such insurance and fidelity bond coverage as may be required by the Government.
- 12. To establish and maintain such books and records relating to the operation of the facility and its financial affairs and to provide for required audit thereof as required by the Government, to provide the Government a copy of each such audit without its request, and to forward to the Government such additional information and reports as it may from time to time require.

-2-

- 13. To provide the Government at all reasonable times access to all books and records relating to the facility and access to the property of the system so that the Government may ascertain that the Association is complying with the provisions hereof and of the instruments incident to the making or insuring of the loan.
- 14. That if the Government requires that a reserve account be established, disbursements from that account(s) may be used when necessary for payments due on the bond if sufficient funds are not otherwise available and prior approval of the Government is obtained. Also, with the prior written approval of the Government, funds may be withdrawn and used for such things as emergency maintenance, extensions to facilities and replacement of short lived assets.
- 15. To provide adequate service to all persons within the service area who can feasibly and legally be served and to obtain USDA's concurrence prior to refusing new or adequate services to such persons. Upon failure to provide services which are feasible and legal, such person shall have a direct right of action against the Association or public body.
- 16. To comply with the measures identified in the Government's environmental impact analysis for this facility for the purpose of avoiding or reducing the adverse environmental impacts of the facility's construction or operation.
- 17. To accept a grant in an amount not to exceed \$ Zero

under the terms offered by the Government; that the Mayor

# and Clerk

of the Association are hereby authorized and empowered to take all action necessary or appropriate in the execution of all written instruments as may be required in regard to or as evidence of such grant; and to operate the facility under the terms offered in said grant agreement(s).

.

The provisions hereof and the provisions of all instruments incident to the making or the insuring of the loan, unless otherwise specifically provided by the terms of such instrument, shall be binding upon the Association as long as the bonds are held or insured by the Government or assignee. The provisions of sections 6 through 17 hereof may be provided for in more specific detail in the bond resolution or ordinance; to the extent that the provisions contained in such bond resolution or ordinance should be found to be inconsistent with the provisions hereof, these provisions shall be construed as controlling between the Association and the Government or assignee.

# Roll call:

Yes: Councilmember Fullerton, Mayor Litzner, Mayor Pro-Tem Paquin, Councilmembers Pelter, St. Louis, Tremble and Clapperton.

No: None.

Absent: Mayor Pro-Tem Paquin.

Resolution declared Adopted.

Public Comment: None.

#### **Consideration of Bills:**

It was moved by Councilmember Clapperton, seconded by Councilmember St. Louis, to approve payment of the bills in the amount of \$21,451.43. Motion carried unanimously.

# The following bills were presented to Council for payment:

ACC PLANNED SERVICE INC		371.13
AIRGAS USA LLC		30.00
BELONGA EXCAVATING, LLC		2,265.00
BELONGA'S PLUMBING AND HEATING		147.36
CANDLEWOOD SUITES EAST LANSING		401.25
GEORGE'S BODY SHOP		190.00
GREAT LAKES COCA-COLA DISTRIBUTION		272.80
HACH COMPANY		1,732.35
HAWKINS		3,052.50
HYDRITE CHEMICAL CO		8,809.94
JOHNSON CONTROLS INC.		232.40
KSS ENTERPRISES		100.33
MACKINAC COUNTY TREASURER		33.44
MC VEIGH'S TRUCK SPRINGS		785.54
MI ASSOCIATION OF CHIEFS OF POLICE		1,310.00
MICHAEL RICHARD LAMB		45.00
NORTHERN LIGHTS FAMILY OUTFITTERS		215.00
PARAGON LABS		325.00
SAFELITE FULFILLMENT, INC		685.94
TRUCK AND TRAILER SPECIALTIES		440.55
WESLEY H MAURER JR		5.90
	Grand Total:	\$21,451.43

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:15 p.m.

Connie Litzner, Mayor

Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer